

# End-point assessment plan for Senior healthcare support worker apprenticeship standard

Apprenticeship standard reference number	Apprenticeship standard level	Integrated end-point assessment
ST0217	3	No

## **Contents**

Introduction and overview	
EPA summary table	3
Duration of end-point assessment period	4
EPA gateway	4
Order of assessment methods	6
Observation of practice with questions	6
Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence	9
Grading	12
Overall EPA grading	28
Re-sits and re-takes	29
Roles and responsibilities	30
Reasonable adjustments	34
Internal quality assurance (IQA)	34
Value for money	35
Professional recognition	
Mapping of KSBs to assessment methods	
Manning of KSRs to grade themes	57

#### Introduction and overview

This document explains the requirements for end-point assessment (EPA) for the senior healthcare support worker apprenticeship. End-point assessment organisations (EPAOs) must follow this when designing and delivering the EPA.

Senior healthcare support worker apprentices, their employers and training providers should read this document.

This is a core and options apprenticeship. An apprentice must be trained and assessed against the core and one option. The options are:

- Adult nursing support
- Maternity support
- Theatre support
- Mental health support
- Children and young people support
- Allied health profession therapy support
- Diagnostic imaging support

A full-time senior healthcare support worker apprentice typically spends 24 months on-programme. The apprentice must spend at least 12 months on-programme and complete the required amount of off-the-job training in line with the apprenticeship funding rules.

The EPA should be completed within an EPA period lasting typically 3 months.

The apprentice must complete their training and meet the gateway requirements before starting their EPA. The EPA will assess occupational competence.

An approved EPAO must conduct the EPA for this apprenticeship. Employers must select an approved EPAO from the apprenticeship provider and assessment register (APAR).

This EPA has 2 assessment methods.

The grades available for each assessment method are below.

#### **Assessment method 1** - observation of practice with questions:

- fail
- pass

**Assessment method 2** - professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence:

- fail
- pass

#### distinction

The result from each assessment method is combined to decide the overall apprenticeship grade. The following grades are available for the apprenticeship:

- fail
- pass
- distinction

# **EPA** summary table

On-programme	The apprentice must:	
(typically 24 months)	<ul> <li>complete training to develop the knowledge, skills and behaviours (KSBs) outlined in this apprenticeship's standard</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>complete training towards English and mathematics qualifications in line with the apprenticeship funding rules</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>compile a portfolio of evidence</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>complete training towards the qualification listed in the senior healthcare support worker apprenticeship standard</li> </ul>	
	The qualification required is:	
	Level 3 Diploma in Healthcare Support	
End-point assessment gateway	The apprentice's employer must be content that the apprentice has attained sufficient KSBs to complete the apprenticeship.	
	<ul> <li>The apprentice must:</li> <li>confirm they are ready to take the EPA</li> <li>have achieved English and mathematics qualifications in line with the apprenticeship funding rules</li> <li>have passed Level 3 Diploma in Healthcare Support</li> </ul>	
	For the professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence, the apprentice must submit a portfolio of evidence. The apprentice must submit the gateway evidence to their EPAO, including any organisation specific policies and procedures requested by the EPAO.	

End-point assessment (typically take 3 months)	The grades available for each assessment method are below	
	Observation of practice with questions:	
	• fail	
	• pass	
	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence:	
	• fail	
	• pass	
	distinction	
	Overall EPA and apprenticeship can be graded:	
	• fail	
	• pass	
	distinction	
Re-sits and re-takes	Re-take and re-sit grade cap: pass	
	Re-sit timeframe: typically 3 months	
	Re-take timeframe: typically 6 months	

## **Duration of end-point assessment period**

The EPA is taken in the EPA period. The EPA period starts when the EPAO confirms the gateway requirements have been met and is typically 3 months.

The EPAO should confirm the gateway requirements have been met and start the EPA as quickly as possible.

## **EPA** gateway

The apprentice's employer must be content that the apprentice has attained sufficient KSBs to complete the apprenticeship. The employer may take advice from the apprentice's training provider, but the employer must make the decision. The apprentice will then enter the gateway. The apprentice must meet the gateway requirements before starting their EPA.

They must:

- confirm they are ready to take the EPA
- have achieved English and mathematics qualifications in line with the apprenticeship funding rules
- have passed Level 3 Diploma in Healthcare Support
- submit a portfolio of evidence for the professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

#### Portfolio of evidence requirements:

The apprentice must compile a portfolio of evidence during the on-programme period of the apprenticeship. It should only contain evidence related to the KSBs that will be assessed by this assessment method. It will typically contain 10 discrete pieces of evidence (for example one against each of the five core grading themes and five against the grading theme of the option they are assigned to). Evidence must be mapped against the KSBs. Evidence may be used to demonstrate more than one KSB; a qualitative as opposed to quantitative approach is suggested.

#### Evidence sources may include:

- witness testimonials
- written report of a case-based discussion
- written report of supporting an intervention
- clinical supervision reflection (relating to K20 and S20)
- work-based observation
- evidence of ongoing professional development
- mapping document showing how the evidence provided meets the KSBs

This is not a definitive list; other evidence sources can be included. Given the breadth of context and roles in which this occupation works, the apprentice will select the most appropriate evidence based on the context of their practice against the KSBs mapped to this method.

The portfolio of evidence should not include reflective accounts or any methods of self-assessment except where evidencing K20 and S20. Any employer contributions should focus on direct observation of performance (for example, witness statements) rather than opinions. The evidence provided should be valid and attributable to the apprentice; the portfolio of evidence should contain a statement from the employer and apprentice confirming this.

The EPAO should not assess the portfolio of evidence directly as it underpins the discussion. The independent assessor should review the portfolio of evidence to prepare questions for the discussion. They are not required to provide feedback after this review.

The apprentice must submit the gateway evidence to their EPAO, including any organisation specific policies and procedures requested by the EPAO.

#### Order of assessment methods

The assessment methods can be delivered in any order.

The result of one assessment method does not need to be known before starting the next.

## **Observation of practice with questions**

#### **Overview**

In the observation with questions, an independent assessor observes the apprentice in their workplace and asks questions. The apprentice completes their day-to-day duties under normal working conditions. Simulation is not allowed. It gives the apprentice the opportunity to demonstrate the KSBs mapped to this assessment method.

#### **Rationale**

This EPA method is being used because:

- this is a practical role, best demonstrated through completing activities in a real work setting
- observation makes use of employer resources and equipment, which will be familiar to the apprentice and thus allow them to perform at their best
- questioning allows for the assessment of the breadth and depth of underpinning knowledge against the grading descriptors
- tasks completed during the observation should contribute to workplace productivity and are valid
- it is a holistic assessment method

#### **Delivery**

The observation of practice with questions must be structured to give the apprentice the opportunity to demonstrate the KSBs mapped to this assessment method to the highest available grade.

An independent assessor must conduct and assess the observation of practice with questions.

The independent assessor must only observe one apprentice at a time to ensure quality and rigour. They must be as unobtrusive as possible.

The EPAO must give the apprentice 2 weeks' notice of the observation with questions.

The observation must take 2 hours.

The independent assessor can increase the time of the observation with questions by up to 10%. This time is to allow the apprentice to complete a task or respond to a question if necessary.

The observation may be split into discrete sections held on the same working day.

The EPAO must manage invigilation of the apprentice during the assessment, to maintain security of the EPA, in line with their malpractice policy. This includes breaks and moving between locations.

The independent assessor must explain to the apprentice the format and timescales of the observation with questions before it starts. This does not count towards the assessment time.

The independent assessor should observe the following during the observation:

#### Core:

- providing care and support to individuals as part of the multi-disciplinary team
- communicating in a way that facilitates understanding
- maintaining the health and safety of the workplace, individuals, colleagues and themselves through safe work practices
- adhering to protocols relevant to their role, the service or intervention they are providing and the organisation they are working in

Option 1 - Adult nursing support

Option 2 - Maternity support

Option 3 - Theatre support

Option 4 - Mental health support

Option 5 - Children and young people support

Option 6 - Allied health profession therapy support

Option 7 - Diagnostic imaging support

These activities provide the apprentice with the opportunity to demonstrate the KSBs mapped to this assessment method.

The independent assessor must ask questions.

The purpose of the follow-up questions are to allow the independent assessor to ask questions about KSBs that were not observed to gather assessment evidence. The independent assessor can also ask questions to clarify answers given by the apprentice.

Questions must be asked after the observation. The total duration of the observation assessment method is 2 hours and the time for questioning is included in the overall assessment time. The total time for the observation element is 90 minutes. The time allocated for questioning is 30 minutes. The independent assessor must ask at least 4 questions. Follow-up questions are allowed where clarification is required. The independent assessor must use the questions from the EPAO's question bank or create their own questions in line with the EPAO's training.

The independent assessor must ask questions about KSBs that were not observed to gather assessment evidence. These questions are in addition to the set number of questions for the observation with questions and should be kept to a minimum.

The independent assessor must make the grading decision. The independent assessor must assess the observation and responses to questions holistically when deciding the grade.

The independent assessor must keep accurate records of the assessment. They must record:

- the KSBs observed
- the apprentice's answers to questions
- the KSBs demonstrated in answers to questions
- the grade achieved

#### **Assessment location**

The observation of practice with questions must take place in the apprentice's normal place of work for example, their employer's premises or a customer's premises. Equipment and resources needed for the observation must be provided by the employer and be in good and safe working condition. Questioning that occurs after the observation should take place in a quiet room, free from distractions and influence.

#### **Question and resource development**

The EPAO must develop a purpose-built assessment specification and question bank. It is recommended this is done in consultation with employers of this occupation. The EPAO should maintain the security and confidentiality of EPA materials when consulting with employers. The assessment specification and question bank must be reviewed at least once a year to ensure they remain fit-for-purpose.

The assessment specification must be relevant to the occupation and demonstrate how to assess the KSBs mapped to this assessment method. The EPAO must ensure that questions are refined and developed to a high standard. The questions must be unpredictable. A question bank of sufficient size will support this.

The EPAO must produce the following materials to support the observation of practice with questions:

independent assessor assessment materials which include:

- training materials
- administration materials
- moderation and standardisation materials
- guidance materials
- grading guidance
- question bank
- EPA guidance for the apprentice and the employer

The EPAO must ensure that the EPA materials are subject to quality assurance procedures including standardisation and moderation.

# Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

#### **Overview**

In the professional discussion, an independent assessor and apprentice have a formal two-way conversation. It gives the apprentice the opportunity to demonstrate the KSBs mapped to this assessment method.

The apprentice can refer to and illustrate their answers with evidence from their portfolio of evidence.

#### **Rationale**

This EPA method is being used because:

- it allows for assessment of knowledge, skills and behaviours that do not occur on a predictable or regular basis
- it allows for assessment of responses where there are a range of potential answers that cannot be tested through the observation
- it can be conducted remotely, potentially reducing cost
- a professional discussion is a well-recognised method of checking knowledge, skills and behaviours and is widely used within the health sector

#### **Delivery**

The professional discussion must be structured to give the apprentice the opportunity to demonstrate the KSBs mapped to this assessment method to the highest available grade.

An independent assessor must conduct and assess the professional discussion.

The purpose is to assess the apprentice's competence against the following core themes:

- promote health and wellbeing
- continuing professional development and reflective practice
- risk management
- quality improvement
- teamwork, role modelling and leadership

The independent assessor must ask at least 10 questions, one for each of the five core themes and five against the option the apprentice is assigned to.

The EPAO must give an apprentice 2 weeks' notice of the professional discussion.

The independent assessor must have at least 2 weeks to review the supporting documentation.

The apprentice must have access to their portfolio of evidence during the professional discussion.

The apprentice can refer to and illustrate their answers with evidence from their portfolio of evidence however, the portfolio of evidence is not directly assessed.

The professional discussion must last for 60 minutes. The independent assessor can increase the time of the professional discussion by up to 10%. This time is to allow the apprentice to respond to a question if necessary.

The independent assessor must ask at least 10 questions. The independent assessor must use the questions from the EPAO's question bank or create their own questions in line with the EPAO's training. Follow-up questions are allowed where clarification is required.

The independent assessor must make the grading decision.

The independent assessor must keep accurate records of the assessment.

#### They must record:

- the apprentice's answers to questions
- the KSBs demonstrated in answers to questions
- · the grade achieved

#### **Assessment location**

The professional discussion must take place in a suitable venue selected by the EPAO for example, the EPAO's or employer's premises.

The professional discussion can be conducted by video conferencing. The EPAO must have processes in place to verify the identity of the apprentice and ensure the apprentice is not being aided.

The professional discussion should take place in a quiet room, free from distractions and influence.

#### **Question and resource development**

The EPAO must develop a purpose-built assessment specification and question bank. It is recommended this is done in consultation with employers of this occupation. The EPAO should maintain the security and confidentiality of EPA materials when consulting with employers. The assessment specification and question bank must be reviewed at least once a year to ensure they remain fit-for-purpose.

The assessment specification must be relevant to the occupation and demonstrate how to assess the KSBs mapped to this assessment method. The EPAO must ensure that questions are refined and developed to a high standard. The questions must be unpredictable. A question bank of sufficient size will support this.

The EPAO must ensure that the apprentice has a different set of questions in the case of resits or re-takes.

The EPAO must produce the following materials to support the professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence:

- independent assessor assessment materials which include:
  - training materials
  - administration materials
  - moderation and standardisation materials
  - quidance materials
  - grading guidance
  - question bank
- EPA guidance for the apprentice and the employer

The EPAO must ensure that the EPA materials are subject to quality assurance procedures including standardisation and moderation.

# **Grading**

**Assessment method 1: Observation of practice with questions** 

		: Observation of practice with questions
THEME	FAIL	PASS
KSBS	DOES NOT MEET THE PASS CRITERIA	APPRENTICES MUST DEMONSTRATE ALL OF THE PASS DESCRIPTORS
(Core) Working to protocol	Does not meet the pass criteria	Practices within the limits of the role of a senior healthcare support in line with legislation, policies, standards codes of conduct and local ways of working. (K1, S1)  Demonstrates working within the scope of practice, the limits of their knowledge and skills, escalating and reporting to others when needed. (K2, S2)
		Establishes consent, or checks that consent has been established, from the individual and together with others from the multi-disciplinary team provides safe, dignified and non-discriminatory care and support that is informed by the principles of 'person-centered care and support' including the active participation and choices of the individual. (K3, S3, B1)
		Implements a duty of care, safeguarding and protection and acts in the best interest of the individual, recognising and reducing the risks of abuse and raising safeguarding and protection concerns in line with organisational procedures. (K4, S4)
(Core) Supporting individuals		Recognises and responds to signs and symptoms that an individual's health is changing and if they are in pain, distress or discomfort makes them comfortable and supports their wellbeing and follows the correct procedure for reporting the changes or situation. (K7, K8, S7, S8)
		Adheres to an individual's care plan and promotes and monitors the correct, safe access to fluids and nutrition in

	line with the principles of hydration, nutrition and food safety. (K9, S9)
	Undertakes physiological measurements on an individual, selecting and using the correct tools or equipment and explains the normal ranges and results. (K28, S28)
(Core) Communication	Communicates with individuals, their families, carers and others in the workplace to facilitate understanding, reflecting their specific needs and the organisational values of respect and empathy. (K10, S10, B2)
	Responds to limits in mental capacity, taking into account the individual's condition and needs. (K11, S11)
	Records, stores, reports, shares or discloses information correctly and in line with policy and legislation, using technology safely and securely and maintaining confidentiality at all times. (K21, K22, S21, S22)
(Core)	Uses the correct infection prevention and control techniques to maintain a safe and healthy working
Health and Safety	environment to the tasks they are carrying out. Ensures the importance of good personal hygiene, hand hygiene and correct use of personal protective equipment PPE) to the tasks they carry out. (K12, S12)
	Uses, stores and disposes of equipment and supplies safely following local processes. Ensures stocks are supplied and managed. (K13, S13)
	Moves and handles equipment or other items or assists an individual safely and in line with health and safety legislation. (K14, S14)
(Adult Nursing Support) Option 1	Works according to the care plan and desired outcomes to support the individual with the activities of daily living in a way that develops, supports and maintains independence. (K29, S29)
Delegated	Against with a tingua viability rick against identifier
nursing care and support for	Assists with a tissue viability risk assessment, identifying the factors that lead to tissues being compromised and
adults	manages pressure areas to support the structure and function of the skin and underlying tissues. (K30, S30)
	Works according to the care plan to assist with wound care for an individual, selecting and using the correct

	materials and equipment to manage and treat the wound. (K31, S31)
	Demonstrates taking and testing specimens in line with the care plan. (K32, S32)
(Maternity Support) Option 2  Delegated maternity care and support for women, babies	Assists with a tissue viability risk assessment, identifying the factors that lead to tissues being compromised and manages pressure areas to support the structure and function of the skin and underlying tissues. (K30, S30)  Demonstrates taking and testing specimens in line with the care plan. (K32, S32)
and their families	Assists the midwife with engaging and teaching a woman or carer feeding and hygiene needs of babies, parenting skills and/or antenatal and postnatal exercise. (K37, S37)
	Assists healthcare professionals with an antenatal, newborn screening and providing information about immunisation to parents in line with local and national services and programmes. (K38, S38)
	Supports the maternity team in the maternity environment by maintaining the correct supply of resources, instruments and equipment in line with the local systems and protocols. (K39, S39)
	Cares for the physical needs of a baby including the observations and routine checks and reports any abnormalities. (K42, S42)
(Theatre Support) Option 3	Completes pre- and post-operative checklists in line with the local systems and protocols. (K46, S46)
Delegated perioperative care and support for individuals	Supports the surgical team by maintaining the sterile field and asepsis by correctly providing surgical instruments and medical devices. (K47, S47)
	Supports and monitors a pre-medicated, sedated or unconscious individual. (K49, S49)
	Moves, positions or transports an individual or specialist equipment, using the correct techniques within the perioperative environment, before, during or after surgery. (K51, S51)

	I	
		Demonstrates carrying out and recording counts for swabs, sharps, instruments and disposable items, following correct organisational procedures if any items are unaccounted for. (K53, S53)
(Mental Health Support)		Applies strategies and tools to promote mental well-being and support individuals with mental ill health. (K55, S55)
Option 4  Delegated therapeutic techniques and		Observes, records and reports changes or barriers in an individual's mental health using proactive approaches to identify the benefits of early intervention and to manage any behaviour which challenges. (K56, S56)
interventions for individuals to promote mental health recovery		Actively supports an individual with mental ill health and those supporting them to manage their condition at a key stage or time of transition. (K57, S57)
		Maintains the therapeutic relationship with an individual and their carers or family if appropriate, by using the correct techniques to build, monitor and sustain the relationship. (K58, S58)
		Demonstrates promoting a recovery-based approach which enables an individual to manage their condition. (K59, S59)
(Children and Young People Support) Option 5		Works according to the care plan and desired outcomes to support the child or young person with the activities of daily living in a way that develops, supports and maintains independence. (K29, S29)
Delegated clinical and therapeutic activities for		Assists with a tissue viability risk assessment, identifying the factors that lead to tissues being compromised and manages pressure areas to support the structure and function of the skin and underlying tissues. (K30, S30)
children, young people and their families		Works according to the care plan to assist with wound care for an individual, selecting and using the correct materials and equipment to manage and treat the wound. (K31, S31)  Demonstrates taking and testing specimens in line with the care plan. (K32, S32)
		(

	Engages the child or young person in therapeutic play using the correct techniques to support their learning and development. (K64, S64)  Supports the parent, family or carer of a child or young person to meet the child or young person's needs, in line with the public health agenda for family centred care and promoting and protecting the health and wellbeing of children and young people, including looked-after children and young carers. (K66, S66)  Applies recognised procedures, tools and equipment to support children or young people either before, during or after diagnostic, clinical or therapeutic procedures. (K67, S67)
(Allied Health Profession Therapy Support) Option 6  Delegated therapeutic activities to support individuals in meeting their optimum potential	Works according to the care plan to provide therapeutic support to an individual that encourages, promotes and enables optimum potential, independence, self-management, social integration, recovery and skills for everyday life using the correct strategies and approaches to rehabilitate or maximise the individual's function. (K68, K71, S68, S71)  Assists with undertaking a clinical risk assessment or management plan in line with the requirements of own work setting and local systems. (K69, S69)  Works according to the care plan to identify, order or fit therapeutic equipment or resources for an individual adhering to the correct local systems and criteria for provision. (K74, S74)  Uses equipment or resources therapeutically and safely, identifying its correct purpose, function, limitations and contra-indications in line with local policy and procedure. (K75, S75)  Carries out a safety check for therapeutic equipment or resources, following the correct protocols to report issues or make adaptations if appropriate. (K77, S77)
(Diagnostic imaging	Assists and supports the multi-disciplinary team in the safe and effective operation and maintenance of the imaging environment. (K78, S78)

support) Option 7 Delegated	Prepares individuals for imaging procedures, including those that maybe pre-medicated, sedated or unconscious in line with protocols, safety requirements and the condition of the individual. (K80, S80)
clinical activities to support service users and their carers before, during and after	Supports and positions individuals during imaging procedures, including those that maybe pre-medicated, sedated or unconscious in line with safety requirements and the condition of the individual. (K81, S81)
diagnostic imaging and/or intervention	Provides after care for individuals following imaging procedures in line with the protocols and procedures for onward care incorporating side effects, adverse responses and post-procedural checklists for the relevant imaging procedure undertaken. (K85, S85)
	Assists practitioners in setting up and maintaining aseptic or clean area in the imaging environment. (K86, S86)
	Assists with undertaking a clinical risk assessment or management plan in line with the requirements of own work setting and local systems. (K90, S90)

# Assessment method 2: Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

THEME	FAIL	PASS	DISTINCTION
KSBS	DOES NOT MEET THE PASS CRITERIA	APPRENTICES MUST DEMONSTRATE ALL OF THE PASS DESCRIPTORS	APPRENTICES MUST DEMONSTRATE ALL OF THE PASS DESCRIPTORS AND ALL OF THE DISTINCTION DESCRIPTORS
(Core) Promote health and wellbeing	Does not meet the pass criteria	Explains how they have supported an individual to make informed and positive lifestyle choices in line with national and local definitions of health and wellbeing and the public health priorities including considering	Compares and contrasts ways in which they have worked to reduce inequalities and support an individual to make informed positive lifestyle choices. (K5, S5)

	ways of reducing inequalities. (K5, S5)  Describes how they have actively sought an opportunity to support an individual to maximise their health, taking into account the availability of services and how to make a referral if required. (K6, S6)	
Continuing professional development and reflective practice	Undertakes continuing personal and professional development activities and contributes to the training and development of others showing they are adaptable, reliable and consistent. (K18, S18, B3)  Outlines how they have participated in the local arrangements for appraisal of performance. (K19, S19)  Applies the principles of reflective practice to reflect on and develop their own practice. (K20, S20)	Analyses the impact of training and development activities on themselves and others. (K18, S18)
(Core) Risk management	Summarises the meaning of 'risk' in the workplace giving evidence that they would take the correct action if they identified a 'risk'. (K15, S15)  Describes how they meet the requirements for providing basic life support, showing an understanding of the techniques	Evaluates their organisation's approach to 'risk' in the workplace. (K15, S15)

	and principles required. (K16, S16)  Explains a time when they have recognised and responded to a potential conflict, challenging behaviour or escalating situation giving context to the description by describing common causes of conflict and the correct ways to respond to them. (K17, S17)	
(Core) Quality Improvement	Describes the quality improvement principles, measures and activities used in their workplace, explaining how they have taken part in an activity and supported others to do the same. (K23, S23)  Explains how they have sourced and used a piece of evidence to validate and improve the delivery of care and support within their own scope of practice identifying the principles of investigatory techniques, research and evidence- based practice that they used. (K24, S24)  Explains how they have critically appraised a source of information and applied their findings to practice describing the principles of critical thinking and the methods of critical appraisal that they used. (K25, S25)	Analyses how they have interpreted evidence and used their findings to inform suggestions for improving practice. (K24, S24)
(Core)	Describes the scope of their role in relation to leadership,	Compares and contrasts examples of when they have

Teamwork, role modelling and leadership	examining their own leadership style and giving an example of when they have acted as a role model for someone else. (K26, S26)  Explains the scope of their own role in relation to mentoring and supervision, explaining the relationship and differences between leadership, management, supervision and mentoring and giving an example of when they have taken a leadership role. (K27,	led, managed, supervised or mentored another person, explaining how their role is different in each example. (K27, S27)
(Adult Nursing Support) Option 1  Delegated nursing care and support for adults	Describes a time when they have provided care and support for an individual or their family during the end-of-life phase, exploring the factors which impacted on the care and support given. (K33, S33)  Explains the local systems for discharge and transfer of individuals between services, giving an example of when they have contributed to signposting an individual to a relevant agency or service and explaining the availability of services and agencies offered by the wider health and social care system. (K34, S34)  Describes how they have recognised and responded to a deterioration in the physical, mental health and wellbeing of an individual, sequencing the	Analyses the actions they took in response to the signs and symptoms that indicate a deterioration in the physical, mental health and wellbeing of an individual, explaining their responsibilities and limits of their competence. (K35, S35)

	signs and symptoms that indicated the deterioration. (K35, S35)  Explains how they supported an individual to take responsibility for their own health and wellbeing and to manage their own condition and identifying the impact it had on the individual. (K36, S36)	
(Maternity Support) Option 2  Delegated maternity care and support for women, babies and their families	Describes a time when they have provided care and support for an individual or their family during the end-of-life phase, exploring the factors which impacted on the care and support given. (K33, S33)  Explains the local systems for discharge and transfer of individuals between services, giving an example of when they have contributed to signposting a woman or family to a relevant agency or service and explaining the availability of services and agencies offered by the wider health and social care system. (K34, S34)  Describes how they have recognised and responded to a deterioration in the physical, mental health and wellbeing of a woman or baby, sequencing the signs and symptoms that indicated the deterioration. (K35, S35)	Analyses the actions they took in response to the signs and symptoms that indicate deterioration in the physical, mental health and wellbeing of a woman and baby, explaining their responsibilities and limits of their competence. (K35, S35)

Explains how they have supported the personal care of a woman with a urethral catheter describing how they have monitored it regularly and correctly. (K40, S40)

Explains how they have identified the baby and the woman, explaining how and why they provided a wristband or label in line with local security procedures. (K41, S41)

Describes how they support parents and carers to meet the developmental, nutritional and hygiene needs of babies, explaining the benefits of different feeding methods and the importance of skin-to-skin contact in bonding. (K43, S43)

Describes how they worked in partnership with a family or another support service to support individuals in difficult circumstances, bereavement or loss explaining the availability of services and how to access them. (K44, S44)

Describes a time when they have supported the midwife and others in the team during an emergency situation during the pregnancy, labour, birth or postnatal period explaining the situation and the scope of their own role. (K45, S45)

		1-
(Theatre Support) Option 3  Delegated peri-operative care and support for individuals	Describes a time they have participated in team briefing, patient sign in, timeout, sign out and debriefing explaining the local systems and protocols. (K48, S48)  Explains how they measure and record an individual's body fluid balance, describing the purpose of recording this and the factors that affect input, output and wound drainage. (K50, S50)  Describes how they prepare the clinical environment and provide surgical instrumentation for the surgical team, listing the types, purpose and function of surgical instruments and supplementary items used noting the cost implications such as on cost or commissioning of surgical procedures. (K52, S52)  Explains the sequence of activities they carried out on an occasion when they have received, handled or dispatched clinical specimens or blood products, listing the type and use of container used and identifying the procedures for labelling, handling, dispatching, recording and reporting used. (K54, S54)	Critically analyses the scope of their role and limits of their competence and that of others in the team in relation to the local systems and protocols used in the peri-operative environment. (K48, S48)
(Mental Health Support) Option 4	Describes how they have recognised and responded to a deterioration in the physical, mental health and wellbeing of an individual, sequencing the signs and symptoms that	Analyses the actions they took in response to the signs and symptoms that indicate a deterioration in the physical, mental health and wellbeing of an individual, explaining their

Delegated therapeutic techniques and interventions for individuals to promote mental health recovery	indicated the deterioration. (K35, S35)  Describes how they enable or empower an individual to actively participate in society and how they help the individual to recognise the impact of mental health on themselves and on the family, friendships and life. (K60, S60)  Describes a time when they have identified a situation of risk to self or others in the mental health setting and identifies the triggers and the impact of the environment on this occasion explaining the correct actions to take to seek support. (K61, S61)  Explains a time when they have involved an individual, their carers or family in the mental health risk management process identifying and listing the types of risk reduction and prevention strategies they used and the impact of these on the individual. (K62, S62)  Reflects on how they have reviewed and promoted their own mental health and wellbeing at work explaining the importance of it and the impact it has on their daily work. (K63, S63)	responsibilities and limits of their competence. (K35, S35)
(Children and Young People	Describes a time when they have provided care and support for a child, young person or their	Analyses the actions they took in response to the signs and symptoms that indicate a

Support) Option 5  Delegated clinical and therapeutic activities for children, young people and their families	family during the end-of-life phase, exploring the factors which impacted on the care and support given. (K33, S33)  Explains the local systems for discharge and transfer of individuals between services, giving an example of when they have contributed to signposting a child or young person to a relevant agency or service and explaining the availability of services and agencies offered by the wider health and social care system. (K34, S34)  Describes how they have recognised and responded to a deterioration in the physical, mental health and wellbeing of a child or young person, sequencing the signs and symptoms that indicated the deterioration. (K35, S35)  Describes how they have supported a child or young person through transitions, showing how they have enabled them to take part in shared or independent decision making. Explains the main life transitions for children and young people and the scope of their own role in relation to the associated legal	deterioration in the physical, mental health and wellbeing of a child or young person, explaining their responsibilities and limits of their competence. (K35, S35)
(Allied Health Profession	•	Analyses the actions they took in response to different conditions, mental or physical

#### Therapy Support) Option 6

Delegated therapeutic activities to support individuals in meeting their optimum potential giving an example of when they have contributed to signposting an individual to a relevant agency or service and explaining the availability of services and agencies offered by the wider health and social care system. (K34, S34)

Explains how they recognise that mental or physical capacity, health condition, learning disability or overall wellbeing of an individual has impacted on the therapeutic or clinical task, describing any adaptions that they needed to make. (K70, S70)

Describes how they facilitate group sessions to support the health and well-being of individuals or communities, explaining the strategies and tools they use to engage them. (K72, S72)

Explains how they have supported an individual to engage in the community and access activities or resources in line with their treatment, describing which activities and resources are available and how to access them. (K73, S73)

Describes how they demonstrated and taught the safe and appropriate use of therapeutic equipment or resources to an individual, explaining the strategies and states, explaining the adaptions made to the therapeutic or clinical task and the responsibilities and limits of their competence. (K70, S70)

	tools they used to engage (K76, S76)	e them.
(Diagnostic imaging support) Option 7  Delegated clinical activities to support service users and their carers before, during and after diagnostic imaging and/or intervention	Describes a time they have participated in team brieficipation patient sign in, timeout, sign and debriefing explaining local systems and protoco (K89, S89)  Explains how they recognized the protocol (K89, S89)  Explains how they recognized the patient condition, learning disability or overall wellber an individual impacts on the therapeutic or clinical task describing any adaptions they need to make. (K91, Describes how they suppose multi-disciplinary team in safe flow of individuals the the imaging environment, explaining the current legand best practice in relationising and non-ionising radiation. (K79, S79)  Describes how they suppopractitioners with the pregand administration of medand contrast agents within scope of their own role in to the regulations, proceding and protocols in the work (K82, S82)  Describes a time when the have administered medic supplied by a registered practitioner within the scottheir own role and the role.	in response to different conditions, mental or physical states, explaining the adaptions made to the therapeutic or clinical task and the responsibilities and limits of their competence. (K91, S91)  ort the the rough islation on to  ort corration dicines in the relation lures place.  ey ines  ope of

others in the team. Describes the risks and mitigations of side effects, adverse responses or non-compliance of these medicines. (K83, S83)

Describes a time when they have inserted, flushed and removed a cannula within the scope of their own role and explains the risks and contraindications of cannulation. (K84, S84)

Describes the structure and function of the human body, common pathologies and mechanisms of disease and trauma, in relation to imaging examinations. Reflects on how these impact their role in supporting the multi-disciplinary team in the safe delivery of an imaging service. (K87, S87)

Explains the signs and symptoms that indicate a deterioration in health and wellbeing of self and others. Describes how they review and promote the health and wellbeing of self and others, including mental health in the workplace. (K88, S88)

## Overall EPA grading

Performance in the EPA determines the overall grade of:

fail

- pass
- distinction

An independent assessor must individually grade the observation of practice with questions and professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence in line with this EPA plan.

The EPAO must combine the individual assessment method grades to determine the overall EPA grade.

If the apprentice fails one assessment method or more, they will be awarded an overall fail.

To achieve an overall pass, the apprentice must achieve at least a pass in all the assessment methods. In order to achieve an overall EPA 'distinction', apprentices must achieve a pass in the observation of practice and a distinction in the professional discussion.

Grades from individual assessment methods must be combined in the following way to determine the grade of the EPA overall.

ASSESSMENT METHOD 1: OBSERVATION OF PRACTICE WITH QUESTIONS	ASSESSMENT METHOD 2: PROFESSIONAL DISCUSSION UNDERPINNED BY A PORTFOLIO OF EVIDENCE	OVERALL GRADING
Fail	Any grade	Fail
Any grade	Fail	Fail
Pass	Pass	Pass
Pass	Distinction	Distinction

#### Re-sits and re-takes

If the apprentice fails one assessment method or more, they can take a re-sit or a re-take at their employer's discretion. The apprentice's employer needs to agree that a re-sit or re-take is appropriate. A re-sit does not need further learning, whereas a re-take does. The apprentice should have a supportive action plan to prepare for a re-sit or a re-take.

The employer and the EPAO should agree the timescale for a re-sit or re-take. A re-sit is typically taken within 3 months of the EPA outcome notification. The timescale for a re-take is dependent on how much re-training is required and is typically taken within 6 months of the EPA outcome notification.

Failed assessment methods must be re-sat or re-taken within a 6-month period from the EPA outcome notification, otherwise the entire EPA will need to be re-sat or re-taken in full.

Re-sits and re-takes are not offered to an apprentice wishing to move from pass to a higher grade.

The apprentice will get a maximum EPA grade of pass for a re-sit or re-take, unless the EPAO determines there are exceptional circumstances.

## Roles and responsibilities

ROLE	RESPONSIBILITY
Apprentice	<ul> <li>As a minimum, the apprentice should:</li> <li>complete on-programme training to meet the KSBs as outlined in the apprenticeship standard for a minimum of 12 months</li> <li>complete the required amount of off-the-job training specified by the apprenticeship funding rules and as arranged by the employer and training provider</li> <li>understand the purpose and importance of EPA</li> <li>prepare for and undertake the EPA including meeting all gateway requirements</li> <li>ensure that all supporting evidence required at the gateway is submitted in line with this EPA plan</li> </ul>
Employer	<ul> <li>As a minimum, the apprentice's employer must:</li> <li>select the EPAO and training provider</li> <li>work with the training provider (where applicable) to support the apprentice in the workplace and to provide the opportunities for the apprentice to develop the KSBs</li> <li>arrange and support off-the-job training to be undertaken by the apprentice</li> <li>decide when the apprentice is working at or above the occupational standard and is ready for EPA</li> <li>ensure the apprentice is prepared for the EPA</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>ensure that all supporting evidence required at the gateway is submitted in line with this EPA plan</li> <li>confirm arrangements with the EPAO for the EPA (who, when, where) in a timely manner</li> <li>provide access to any employer-specific documentation as required for example,</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>ensure that the EPA is scheduled with the EPAO for a date and time which allows appropriate opportunity for the apprentice to meet the KSBs</li> <li>ensure the apprentice is given sufficient time away from regular duties to prepare for, and complete the EPA</li> <li>ensure that any required supervision during the EPA period, as stated within this EPA plan, is in place</li> <li>ensure the apprentice has access to the resources used to fulfil their role and carry out the EPA for workplace based assessments</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>remain independent from the delivery of the EPA</li> <li>pass the certificate to the apprentice upon receipt from the EPAO</li> </ul>
EPAO	<ul> <li>conform to the requirements of this EPA plan and deliver its requirements in a timely manner</li> <li>conform to the requirements of the apprenticeship provider and assessment register</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>conform to the requirements of the external quality assurance provider (EQAP)</li> <li>understand the apprenticeship including the occupational standard, EPA plan and funding</li> <li>make all necessary contractual arrangements including agreeing the price of the EPA</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>develop and produce assessment materials including specifications and marking materials (for example mark schemes, practice materials, training material)</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>maintain and apply a policy for the declaration and management of conflict of interests and independence. This must ensure, as a minimum,</li> </ul>

there is no personal benefit or detriment for those delivering the EPA or from the result of an assessment. It must cover:

- apprentices
- employers
- independent assessors
- any other roles involved in delivery or grading of the EPA
- have quality assurance systems and procedures that ensure fair, reliable and consistent assessment and maintain records of internal quality assurance (IQA) activity for external quality assurance (EQA) purposes
- appoint independent, competent, and suitably qualified assessors in line with the requirements of this EPA plan
- appoint administrators, invigilators and any other roles where required to facilitate the EPA
- deliver induction, initial and on-going training for all their independent assessors and any other roles involved in the delivery or grading of the EPA as specified within this EPA plan. This should include how to record the rationale and evidence for grading decisions where required
- conduct standardisation with all their independent assessors before allowing them to deliver an EPA, when the EPA is updated, and at least once a year
- conduct moderation of all their independent assessors' decisions once EPAs have started
- monitor the performance of all their independent assessors and provide retraining where necessary
- develop and provide assessment recording documentation to ensure a clear and auditable process is in place for providing assessment decisions and feedback to all relevant stakeholders

	<ul> <li>use language in the development and delivery of the EPA that is appropriate to the level of the apprenticeship</li> <li>arrange for the EPA to take place in a timely manner, in consultation with the employer</li> <li>provide information, advice, and guidance documentation to enable apprentices, employers and training providers to prepare for the EPA</li> <li>confirm the gateway requirements have been met before they start the EPA for an apprentice</li> <li>host and facilitate the EPA or make suitable alternative arrangements</li> <li>maintain the security of the EPA including, but not limited to, verifying the identity of the apprentice, invigilation and security of materials</li> <li>where the EPA plan permits assessment away from the workplace, ensure that the apprentice has access to the required resources and liaise with the employer to agree this if necessary</li> <li>confirm overall grade awarded</li> <li>arrange the certification of the apprenticeship</li> <li>maintain and apply a policy for conducting appeals</li> </ul>
Independent	As a minimum, an independent assessor must:
assessor	<ul> <li>be independent, with no conflict of interest with the apprentice, their employer or training provider, specifically, they must not receive a personal benefit or detriment from the result of the assessment</li> <li>have, maintain and be able to evidence up-to-date knowledge and expertise of the occupation</li> <li>have the competence to assess the EPA and meet the requirements of the IQA section of this EPA plan</li> <li>understand the apprenticeship's occupational standard and EPA plan</li> <li>attend induction and standardisation events before they conduct an EPA for the first time, when the EPA is updated, and at least once a year</li> <li>use language in the delivery of the EPA that is appropriate to the level of the apprenticeship</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>work with other personnel, including additional assessors where used, in the preparation and delivery of assessment methods</li> <li>conduct the EPA to assess the apprentice against the KSBs and in line with the EPA plan</li> <li>make final grading decisions in line with this EPA plan</li> <li>record and report assessment outcome decisions</li> <li>comply with the IQA requirements of the EPAO</li> <li>comply with external quality assurance (EQA) requirements</li> </ul>
Training provider	As a minimum, the training provider must:
	conform to the requirements of the apprenticeship provider and assessment register
	<ul> <li>ensure procedures are in place to mitigate against any conflict of interest</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>work with the employer and support the apprentice during the off-the-job training to provide the opportunities to develop the KSBs as outlined in the occupational standard</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>deliver training to the apprentice as outlined in their apprenticeship agreement</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>monitor the apprentice's progress during any training provider led on-programme learning</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>ensure the apprentice is prepared for the EPA</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>advise the employer, upon request, on the apprentice's readiness for EPA</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>ensure that all supporting evidence required at the gateway is submitted in line with this EPA plan</li> </ul>
	remain independent from the delivery of the EPA

# Reasonable adjustments

The EPAO must have reasonable adjustments arrangements for the EPA.

This should include:

- how an apprentice qualifies for a reasonable adjustment
- what reasonable adjustments may be made

Adjustments must maintain the validity, reliability and integrity of the EPA as outlined in this EPA plan.

#### Special considerations:

The EPAO must have special consideration arrangements for the EPA. This should include:

- how an apprentice qualifies for a special consideration
- what special considerations will be given

Special considerations must maintain the validity, reliability and integrity of the EPA as outlined in this EPA plan.

## **Internal Quality Assurance**

Internal quality assurance refers to the strategies, policies and procedures that an EPAO must have in place to ensure valid, consistent and reliable EPA decisions.

EPAOs for this EPA must adhere to the requirements within the roles and responsibilities table.

They must also appoint independent assessors who:

- have recent relevant experience of the occupation or sector to at least occupational level 3 gained in the last 5 years or significant experience of the occupation or sector
- meet the following minimum requirements:
  - be occupationally competent against the standard
  - keep up to date with continuing professional development (CPD)

## Value for money

Affordability of the EPA will be aided by using at least some of the following:

- utilising digital remote platforms to conduct applicable assessment methods
- using the employer's premises

## **Professional recognition**

This apprenticeship is not aligned to professional recognition.

# **Mapping KSBs to assessment methods**

KNOWLEDGE	ASSESSMENT METHODS
K1 Core	Observation with
Core: The legislation, policies, standards, local ways of working and codes of conduct that apply to own role.	questions
K2 Core	Observation with
Core: The scope of practice, limitations of own competence, including limitations of own role in relation to medication and who to ask for support.	questions
K3 Core	Observation of practice
Core: The principles of 'person-centred care and support', including principles of equality, diversity and inclusion, active participation, consent and choice.	with questions
K4 Core	Observation of practice
Core: The principles of a 'duty of care' and 'safeguarding', the signs of abuse and ways to reduce the risk of abuse.	with questions
K5 Core	Professional discussion
Core: National and local definitions of health and well-being and priorities for promoting public health and reducing inequalities.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K6 Core	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
Core: The availability of services to support individuals with lifestyle choices and how to make a referral if required.	
K7 Core	Observation of practice
Core: The signs and symptoms that an individual's health and wellbeing is changing, including the role of prescribed medication.	with questions

K8 Core	Observation of practice
Core: The signs and symptoms that an individual is in pain, distress or discomfort.	with questions
K9 Core	Observation of practice
Core: The principles of hydration, nutrition and food safety.	with questions
K10 Core	Observation of practice
Core: Communication techniques to maximise understanding including for individuals with specific communication needs or wishes.	with questions
K11 Core	Observation of practice
Core: The meaning of 'capacity', the differences between mental illness, dementia and learning disability and the impact of these conditions on an individual's needs.	with questions
K12 Core	Observation of practice
Core: The principles of infection prevention and control and the importance of good personal hygiene, hand hygiene and correct use of personal protective equipment (PPE).	with questions
K13 Core	Observation of practice
Core: Local systems and processes to manage the supply, storage, use and safe disposal of stocks and supplies.	with questions
K14 Core	Observation of practice
Core: The principles of safe moving and assisting individuals and moving and handling equipment.	with questions
K15 Core	Professional discussion
Core: The meaning of 'risk' in the workplace, ways to raise concerns and own responsibilities in relation to incidents, errors and near misses.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K16 Core	Professional discussion
Core: Techniques and principles to safely perform basic life support.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K17 Core	Professional discussion
Core: The common causes of conflict and how to respond to them in the workplace.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K18 Core	Professional discussion
Core: The importance of continuing personal and professional development.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

K19 Core	Professional discussion
Core: The local arrangements for appraisal of performance in the workplace.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K20: Core	Professional discussion
Core: The principles of reflective practice.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K21: Core	Observation of practice
Core: Ways to record and store information securely, including the safe use of technology.	with questions
K22: Core	Observation of practice
Core: The principles of confidentiality, duty of confidence and disclosure.	with questions
K23: Core	Professional discussion
Core: The principles of 'quality improvement' and ways to measure quality in the workplace.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K24: Core	Professional discussion
Core: The principles of investigatory techniques, research and evidence-based practice, and how to access existing evidence and use it to validate and improve practice	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K25: Core	Professional discussion
Core: The principles of critical thinking and methods of critical appraisal.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K26: Core	Professional discussion
Core: The principles and styles of leadership in relation to own role and place of work.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K27: Core	Professional discussion
Core: The relationship and differences between leadership, management, supervision and mentoring.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K28: Core	Observation of practice
Core: The physiological states, their normal ranges and the correct tools or equipment to use to measure them.	with questions
K29: Adult nursing support, Children and young people support	Observation of practice with questions
Options 1 and 5: Adult nursing support and children and young people support: The activities of daily living and ways to	

support individuals to develop and maintain their independence in carrying out these activities.	
K30: Adult nursing support, Maternity support, Children and young people support	Observation of practice with questions
Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: The structure and function of the skin and underlying tissues and factors that lead to tissues being compromised.	
K31: Adult nursing support, Children and young people support	Observation of practice with questions
Options 1 and 5: Adult nursing support and children and young people support: The principles of wound management and the equipment and materials that are used to treat wounds.	
K32: Adult nursing support, Maternity support, Children and young people support	Observation of practice with questions
Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Methods for taking and testing specimens.	
K33: Adult nursing support, Maternity support, Children and young people support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: The end-of-life phase and the factors which impact care during the end of life phase.	portfolio of evidence
K34: Adult nursing support, Maternity support, Children and young people support, Allied health profession therapy support	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
Options 1, 2, 5 and 6: Adult nursing support, maternity support, children and young people support and allied health professional therapy support: Local systems for discharge and transfer and the availability of services and agencies offered by the wider health and social care system.	
K35: Adult nursing support, Maternity support, Mental health support, Children and young people support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Options 1, 2, 4 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support, mental health support and children and young people support: The signs and symptoms that indicate an individual's physical or mental health and wellbeing are deteriorating.	portfolio of evidence
K36: Adult nursing support	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

Option 1: Adult nursing support: How to support adults to take responsibility for their own health and wellbeing.	
K37: Maternity support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 2: Maternity support: Strategies to engage women and carers in feeding, bathing, parenting and self-care such as antenatal and postnatal exercise.	
K38: Maternity support	Observation of practice
Option 2: Maternity support: Local and national antenatal and newborn screening services and immunisation programmes.	with questions
K39: Maternity support	Observation of practice
Option 2: Maternity support: Local systems and protocols to maintain the maternity environment including procedures to maintain the supply of resources, instruments and equipment.	with questions
K40: Maternity support	Professional discussion
Option 2: Maternity support: The purpose of a urethral catheter and the importance of regular monitoring.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K41: Maternity support	Professional discussion
Option 2: Maternity support: Local security procedures for women and babies including systems for woman and baby identification.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K42: Maternity support	Observation of practice
Option 2: Maternity support: The routine checks and observations undertaken for a healthy baby such as cord care, eye care, oral hygiene, stools and signs of neo-natal jaundice.	with questions
K43: Maternity support	Professional discussion
Option 2: Maternity support: The nutritional and hygiene needs of babies, the benefits of different feeding methods and the importance of skin-to-skin contact in bonding.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K44: Maternity support	Professional discussion
Option 2: Maternity support: The principles of supporting families at difficult times, bereavement and loss and the availability of other support services.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K45: Maternity support	Professional discussion
Option 2: Maternity support: The scope of their own role in an emergency situation during pregnancy, labour, birth or the postnatal period.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

K46: Theatre support	Observation of practice
Option 3: Theatre support: Local systems and protocols for completing pre- and post-operative checklists.	with questions
K47: Theatre support	Observation of practice
Option 3: Theatre support: The principles of asepsis and maintenance of the sterile field in relation to the provision of surgical instrumentation and medical devices to the surgical team.	with questions
K48: Theatre support	Professional discussion
Option 3: Theatre support: Local systems and protocols for team briefing, patient sign in, timeout, sign out and debriefing.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K49: Theatre support	Observation of practice
Option 3: Theatre support: The effects of pre-medication, sedation and anaesthesia on individuals.	with questions
K50: Theatre support	Professional discussion
Option 3: Theatre support: The purpose for recording an individual's body fluid and factors that affect input, output and wound drainage.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K51: Theatre support	Observation of practice
Option 3: Theatre support: Techniques used in the perioperative environment to position individuals and specialist equipment for before, during and after surgery.	with questions
K52: Theatre support	Professional discussion
Option 3: Theatre support: The types, purpose and function of surgical instruments and supplementary items used in theatre such as the cost implications of items used and the impact on the commissioning of surgical procedures.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K53: Theatre support	Observation of practice
Option 3: Theatre support: The importance of identification, measurement, accounting for and recording swabs, sharps, instruments or other disposable items used and the actions to take if one is missing.	with questions
K54: Theatre support	Professional discussion
Option 3: Theatre support: Types and uses of containers for transport, procedures for labelling, handling, dispatching recording and reporting for clinical specimens and blood products.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

K55: Mental health support	Observation of practice
Option 4: Mental health support: The nature of mental health and well-being and the main forms of mental ill health according to the psychiatric International Classification of Diseases and Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM/ICD) classification system.	with questions
K56: Mental health support	Observation of practice
Option 4: Mental health support: The main interventions in mental health and well-being and the benefits of early intervention.	with questions
K57: Mental health support	Observation of practice
Option 4: Mental health support: The needs of individuals with mental ill health and those supporting them at key stages and through times of change or transition.	with questions
K58: Mental health support	Observation of practice
Option 4: Mental health support: Techniques used to build, monitor and sustain therapeutic relationships with individuals, carers and their families.	with questions
K59: Mental health support	Observation of practice
Option 4: Mental health support: The factors that facilitate an individual's recovery experience.	with questions
K60: Mental health support	Professional discussion
Option 4: Mental health support: The impact of the individual's mental ill-health on their life, family, friendships and active participation in society.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K61: Mental health support	Professional discussion
Option 4: Mental health support: Risk factors of harm to self or others, a range of triggers and consideration of the impact of the environment.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K62: Mental health support	Professional discussion
Option 4: Mental health support: Prevention and risk reduction strategies which involve the individual and others, such as suicide mitigation, behaviours which challenge, substance misuse and self-neglect and reduction of restrictive practices.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K63: Mental health support	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

Option 4: Mental health support: The importance of own mental	
health and wellbeing when working in mental health services.	
K64: Children and young people support	Observation of practice
104. Official and young poople support	with questions
Option 5: Children and young people support: Principles and	with questions
techniques to engage children and young people in therapeutic	
play.	
K65: Children and young people support	Professional discussion
Nos. Children and young people support	
Ontion 5: Children and young people support: The main life	underpinned by a
Option 5: Children and young people support: The main life	portfolio of evidence
transitions for children and young people and the importance of	
involving the child or young person in their own care in line with	
legal policy and service frameworks for children and young	
people.	
K66: Children and young people support	Observation of practice
	with questions
Option 5: Children and young people support: The importance	
of family-centered care and the role of the public health agenda	
in promoting and protecting the health and wellbeing of	
children and young people, to include looked-after children and	
young carers.	
K67: Children and young people support	Observation of practice
	with questions
Option 5: Children and young people support: The expected	•
physical, cognitive, language, emotional, social and	
developmental milestones, the tools and equipment to	
measure and assess them and how to adapt practice to meet	
additional needs.	
K68: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice
Troc. 7 miles incum profession miles apy capport	with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: The care	With quotions
planning process and therapeutic strategies used within own	
role to promote and enable independence, self-management,	
social integration, recovery and skills for everyday life.	
K69: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice
Nos. Ameu neami profession merapy support	with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Local	with questions
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
systems for undertaking clinical risk assessments and	
management plans relevant to own work setting.	Drefessional discussion
K70: Allied health profession therapy support	Professional discussion
Onting Or Alliant benefits and the contract Ti	underpinned by a
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: The	portfolio of evidence
potential impact of mental and physical capacity, health	
condition, learning disability or overall wellbeing on therapeutic	
or clinical interventions.	

K71: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice
	with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Strategies	
and approaches to rehabilitate or maximise an individual's	
function.	
K72: Allied health profession therapy support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Strategies and tools available to engage individuals or communities in group sessions.	portfolio of evidence
K73: Allied health profession therapy support	Professional discussion
The continuous reasons are a company company	underpinned by a
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Activities	portfolio of evidence
and resources available within the community and the means	portions of evidence
to access them.	
K74: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice
	Observation of practice with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Local	
systems for sourcing, ordering and fitting therapeutic	
equipment and resources and the criteria for provision.	
K75: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: The	•
purpose and function of the therapeutic equipment and	
resources available, including its limitations and contra-	
indications.	
K76: Allied health profession therapy support	Professional discussion
Trace realist profession morapy support	underpinned by a
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Strategies and tools available to engage individuals in learning how to use	portfolio of evidence
therapeutic equipment and resources.	
K77: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Protocols	
for checking, reporting and adapting therapeutic equipment	
and resources.	
K78: Diagnostic imaging support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The procedures and	quodiono
protocols for undertaking quality checks on equipment, the	
procedures and protocols for working safely in the imaging	
environment.	
On who in the control of the control	Professional discussion
K79: Diagnostic imaging support	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: An awareness of ionising and non-ionising radiation and how these are safely	
applied to imaging examinations across a patient pathway.  K80: Diagnostic imaging support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The correct clothing, hygiene, fluid, nutrition protocols, safety equipment requirements relevant to the imaging procedure and the condition of the individual, including the correct use of pre- and post- procedural checklists.	with questions
K81: Diagnostic imaging support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Techniques and equipment used to position individuals in line with the safety requirements of the procedure, the physical and mental condition of the individual and how this may impact on the imaging procedure.	•
K82: Diagnostic imaging support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The regulations procedures and protocols for the safe preparation and administration of medicines and contrast agents.	portfolio of evidence
K83: Diagnostic imaging support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Roles and responsibilities in the safe supply, management and administration of medicines, the range of procedures where these are used and the risks and mitigations of side effects, adverse response or non-compliance.	portfolio of evidence
K84: Diagnostic imaging support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The risks and contra- indications of cannulation and the equipment and techniques used to cannulate/remove cannulas.	portfolio of evidence
K85: Diagnostic imaging support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The risks and mitigations of side effects, adverse responses or non-compliance associate with imaging procedure, the correct use of post-procedural checklists and the protocols and procedures for onward care relevant to the imaging procedure undertaken.	
K86: Diagnostic imaging support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The principles of asepsis and maintenance of the sterile field or clean area in relation to imaging equipment and materials.	4

K87: Diagnostic imaging support  Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The structure and function of the human body in health, disease and trauma, as well as common pathologies and mechanisms of disease and trauma, in relation to imaging examinations.	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K88: Diagnostic imaging support  Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The importance of recognising the signs and symptoms that indicate a deterioration in the health and wellbeing of self and others, including mental health.	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K89: Diagnostic imaging support  Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Local systems and protocols for team briefing, patient sign in, timeout, sign out and debriefing.	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
K90: Diagnostic imaging support  Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Local systems for undertaking clinical risk assessments and management plans relevant to own work setting.	Observation of practice with questions
K91: Diagnostic imaging support  Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The potential impact of mental and physical capacity, health condition, learning disability or overall wellbeing on therapeutic or clinical interventions.	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

SKILL	ASSESSMENT METHODS
S1: Core  Core: Work in line with legislation, policies, standards, local ways of working and codes of conduct that apply to own role.	Observation of practice with questions
S2: Core  Core: Work within the scope of practice, the limits of own knowledge and skills, escalating and reporting to others when needed.	Observation of practice with questions

S3: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Work as part of a multi-disciplinary team to provide safe and non-discriminatory person-centered care and support with individuals' established consent.	•
S4: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Implement a duty of care, recognising and responding to safeguarding and protection concerns and acting in the best interest of individuals to ensure they do not come to harm.	with questions
S5: Core	Professional discussion
Core: Support individuals to make informed and positive lifestyle choices.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S6: Core	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Core: Actively seek out and act on opportunities to support individuals to maximise their health, well-being and positive lifestyle choices.	portfolio of evidence
S7: Core	Observation of practice
Core: Recognise and respond to changes in an individual's health and wellbeing.	with questions
S8: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Recognise and respond to the signs and symptoms that an individual is in pain, distress or discomfort to maximise comfort and well-being.	man quoonono
S9: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Promote and monitor access to fluids and nutrition in line with an individual's care plan.	with questions
S10: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Communicate with individuals, their families, carers and others in the workplace using techniques designed to facilitate understanding.	quodiono
S11: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Recognise and respond to limitations in an individual's mental capacity.	with questions

S12: Core  Core: Maintain a safe and healthy working environment, using	Observation of practice with questions
infection prevention and control techniques including hand washing, sanitisation, disinfection and personal protective equipment (PPE).	
S13: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Maintain the safe supply, storage, use and disposal of supplies and equipment.	1
S14: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Move and handle equipment or other items safely and assist individuals.	with quotions
S15: Core	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Core: Take appropriate action in response to concerns, risks, incidents or errors and near misses arising in the workplace.	portfolio of evidence
S16: Core	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Core: Perform basic life support techniques.	portfolio of evidence
S17: Core	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Core: Recognise and respond to potential conflict, challenging behaviour or an escalating situation.	portfolio of evidence
S18: Core	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Core: Undertake own training and development activities and contribute to the training and development of others.	portfolio of evidence
S19: Core	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Core: Participate in appraisal to support professional development.	portfolio of evidence
S20: Core	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Core: Reflect on and develop your own practice.	portfolio of evidence
S21: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Record and store information related to individuals securely, including the safe use of technology.	,

S22: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Report and share information related to individuals securely and in line with local and national policies, maintaining confidentiality, duty of confidence and disclosure.	man quoonono
S23: Core	Professional discussion
Core: Participate in and support others with quality improvement activities in the workplace.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S24: Core	Professional discussion
Core: Use investigatory techniques to source evidence to validate and improve the delivery of care and support within own scope of practice.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S25: Core	Professional discussion
Core: Critically appraise sources of information and apply to practice.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S26: Core	Professional discussion
Core: Provide leadership and act as a role model for others within the scope of own role.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S27: Core	Professional discussion
Core: Contribute to mentoring and supervision of others in the workplace within the scope of own role.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S28: Core	Observation of practice
Core: Undertake physiological measurements, selecting and using the correct tools or equipment.	with questions
S29: Adult nursing support, Children and young people support	Observation of practice with questions
Options 1 and 5: Adult nursing support and children and young people support: Support individuals with activities of daily living to develop and maintain their independence in line with their desired outcomes and plan of care.	
S30: Adult nursing support, Maternity support, Children and young people support	Observation of practice with questions

Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Assist with tissue viability risk assessments and manage pressure areas.	
S31: Adult nursing support, Children and young people support	Observation of practice with questions
Options 1 and 5: Adult nursing support and children and young people support: Assist with wound care in line with the care plan.	
S32: Adult nursing support, Maternity support, Children and young people support	Observation of practice with questions
Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Obtain and test specimens in line with the care plan.	
S33: Adult nursing support, Maternity support, Children and young people support	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Provide care and support for individuals and their family during the end-of-life phase.	
S34: Adult nursing support, Maternity support, Children and young people support, Allied health profession therapy support	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
Options 1, 2, 5 and 6: Adult nursing support, maternity support, children and young people support and allied health professional therapy support: Contribute to signposting to relevant agencies and, discharge or transfer of individuals between services, in line with their care plan.	
S35: Adult nursing support, Maternity support, Mental health support, Children and young people support	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
Options 1, 2, 4 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support, mental health support and children and young people support: Recognise and respond to deteriorations in physical health, mental health and wellbeing.	
S36: Adult nursing support  Option 1: Adult nursing support: Support adults to take responsibility for their own health and wellbeing and for managing their own condition.	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

S37: Maternity support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 2: Maternity support: Assist the midwife with teaching, feeding and hygiene needs of babies-parenting skills and antenatal and postnatal exercise.	4.00.00.0
S38: Maternity support	Observation of practice
Option 2: Maternity support: Assist health care professionals with antenatal and newborn screening and provide information to parents about immunisation activities.	with questions
S39: Maternity support	Observation of practice
Option 2: Maternity support: Provide support to the maternity team by maintaining the supply of resources, instruments and equipment.	with questions
S40: Maternity support	Professional discussion
Option 2: Maternity support: Support personal care such as providing care for women with urethral catheters.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S41: Maternity support	Professional discussion
Option 2: Maternity support: Identify the baby and provide wristband or label in line with local security procedures.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S42: Maternity support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 2: Maternity support: Care for the physical needs of babies by undertaking routine healthy baby observations and reporting any abnormalities.	with questions
S43: Maternity support	Professional discussion
Option 2: Maternity support: Support parents and carers to meet the developmental, nutritional and hygiene needs of babies.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S44: Maternity support	Professional discussion
Option 2: Maternity support: Work in partnership with families and other support services to support individuals in difficult circumstances, bereavement and loss.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S45: Maternity support	Professional discussion
Option 2: Maternity support: Provide support to the midwife and others in the multi-disciplinary team in an emergency situation during pregnancy, labour, birth or the postnatal period.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

S46: Theatre support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 3: Theatre support: Complete pre- and post-operative checklists.	
S47: Theatre support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 3: Theatre support: Support the surgical team to maintain the sterile field.	
S48: Theatre support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Option 3: Theatre support: Participate in team briefing, patient sign in, timeout, sign out and debriefing.	portfolio of evidence
S49: Theatre support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 3: Theatre support: Support and monitor the premedicated, sedated and unconscious individual.	
S50: Theatre support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Option 3: Theatre support: Measure and record an individual's body fluid balance.	portfolio of evidence
S51: Theatre support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 3: Theatre support: Move, position and transport individuals and specialist equipment before, during and after surgery.	·
S52: Theatre support	Professional discussion
Option 3: Theatre support: Prepare the clinical environment and provide surgical instrumentation and supplementary items for the surgical team.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S53: Theatre support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 3: Theatre support: Carry out counts for swabs, sharps, instruments and disposable items and take action if something is missing.	<b>q</b>
S54: Theatre support	Professional discussion
Option 3: Theatre support: Assist in receiving, handling and dispatching clinical specimens or blood products.	underpinned by a portfolio of evidence
S55: Mental health support	Observation of practice
Option 4: Mental health support: Use strategies and tools to promote mental wellbeing and to support individuals with mental ill health.	with questions

S56: Mental health support	Observation of practice
oso. Mentar realth support	with questions
Option 4: Mental health support: Observe, record and report	•
changes and barriers, using proactive approaches to manage	
behaviour which challenges.	
S57: Mental health support	Observation of practice
Ontion 4: Montal health augment: Take an active approach in	with questions
Option 4: Mental health support: Take an active approach in	
supporting individuals to manage their condition.  S58: Mental health support	Observation of practice
336. Mental health support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 4: Mental health support: Build, monitor and sustain	•
therapeutic relationships with individuals, carers and their	
families.	
S59: Mental health support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 4: Mental health support: Promote a recovery-based	•
approach that enables the individual to manage their condition.	
S60: Mental health support	Professional discussion
	underpinned by a
Option 4: Mental health support: Enable and empower	portfolio of evidence
individuals to actively participate in society and recognise the	
impact of mental health on them and others.	
S61: Mental health support	Professional discussion
	underpinned by a
Option 4: Mental health support: Identify situations of risk to	portfolio of evidence
yourself or others and take action including seeking support.	5
S62: Mental health support	Professional discussion
Ontion 4. Montal health augments Invalve the individual cores	underpinned by a
Option 4: Mental health support: Involve the individual, carers	portfolio of evidence
and family members in risk management processes.	Professional discussion
S63: Mental health support	underpinned by a
Option 4: Mental health support: Review and promote your own	portfolio of evidence
mental health and wellbeing.	Politiono of Gvidence
S64: Children and young people support	Observation of practice
	with questions
Option 5: Children and young people support: Support the	
development of children and young people through therapeutic	
play and learning.	
S65: Children and young people support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Option 5: Children and young people support: Support children	portfolio of evidence
and young people through transitions by enabling shared or	Politiono of evidence
independent decision making.	
independent decision making.	

S66: Children and young people support	Observation of practice
	with questions
Option 5: Children and young people support: Support parents,	
families and carers to meet the needs of children and young	
people.	
S67: Children and young people support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 5: Children and young people support: Support children	
and young people before, during or after diagnostic, clinical or	
therapeutic procedures.	
S68: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Provide	-
therapeutic support in line with care plans to encourage	
independence, self-management and skills for everyday life.	
S69: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Assist with	•
undertaking clinical risk assessments and management plans.	
S70: Allied health profession therapy support	Professional discussion
, .,	underpinned by a
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Recognise	portfolio of evidence
the impact of mental or physical capacity, health condition,	•
learning disability or overall wellbeing on the therapeutic or	
clinical task or intervention and when to adapt.	
S71: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Enable	
individuals to meet optimum potential.	
S72: Allied health profession therapy support	Professional discussion
	underpinned by a
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Facilitate	portfolio of evidence
group sessions to support health and well-being of individuals	•
or communities.	
S73: Allied health profession therapy support	Professional discussion
The state of the s	underpinned by a
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Support	portfolio of evidence
people to engage in the community and access activities or	
resources in line with their treatment goals.	
S74: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Identify,	
order or fit therapeutic equipment and resources in line with the	
individual's care plan.	
	l .

S75: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Use	The quotient
equipment and resources therapeutically in a safe way in line	
with local policy and procedure.	
S76: Allied health profession therapy support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support:	portfolio of evidence
Demonstrate and teach the safe and appropriate use of	
therapeutic equipment and resources.	
S77: Allied health profession therapy support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Complete	
safety checks for therapeutic equipment and resources,	
following protocols to report issues or make adaptations if	
appropriate.	
S78: Diagnostic imaging support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Assist and support the	
multi-disciplinary team in the safe and effective operation and	
maintenance of the imaging environment.	
S79: Diagnostic imaging support	Professional discussion
	underpinned by a
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Support the multi-	portfolio of evidence
disciplinary team in the safe flow of individuals through the	
imaging environment, recognising and complying with current	
legislation and best practice.	
S80: Diagnostic imaging support.	Observation of practice with questions
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Prepare individuals for	-
imaging procedures, including those that maybe pre-	
medicated, sedated or unconscious.	
S81: Diagnostic imaging support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Support and position	
individuals during imaging procedures, including those that	
maybe pre-medicated, sedated or unconscious.	
S82: Diagnostic imaging support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Support practitioners	portfolio of evidence
with the preparation and administration of medicines and	
contrast agents within the scope of own role.	
S83: Diagnostic imaging support	Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

Option 7: Diagnostic Imaging Support: Administer medicines supplied by a registered practitioner within the scope of own	
role.	
S84: Diagnostic imaging support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Insert, flush and remove cannulas in line with local protocols and within the scope of own role.	portfolio of evidence
S85: Diagnostic imaging support	Observation of practice with questions
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Provide after care for individuals following imaging procedures.	
S86: Diagnostic imaging support	Observation of practice
	with questions
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Assist practitioners in	
setting up and maintaining aseptic or clean area in the imaging	
environment.	
S87: Diagnostic imaging support	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Support the multi-	portfolio of evidence
disciplinary team in the safe delivery of an imaging service.	
S88: Diagnostic imaging support	Professional discussion
	underpinned by a
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Review and promote the	portfolio of evidence
health and wellbeing of self and others, including mental	
health.	
S89: Diagnostic imaging support	Professional discussion
good 2 mgmood magmg cappen	underpinned by a
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Participate in team	portfolio of evidence
briefing, patient sign in, timeout, sign out and debriefing.	perment of ordered
S90: Diagnostic imaging support	Observation of practice
Soc. Plagnoons imaging support	with questions
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Assist with undertaking	94400110110
clinical risk assessments and management plans.	
S91: Diagnostic imaging support	Professional discussion
our Diagnostic inaging support	underpinned by a
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Recognise the impact of	portfolio of evidence
mental or physical capacity, health condition, learning disability	portions of evidence
or overall wellbeing on the therapeutic or clinical task or	
intervention and when to adapt.	

BEHAVIOUR	ASSESSMENT METHODS
B1: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Treat people with dignity.	_
B2: Core	Observation of practice with questions
Core: Show respect and empathy.	·
B3: Core	Professional discussion underpinned by a
Core: Be adaptable, reliable and consistent.	portfolio of evidence

## Mapping of KSBs to grade themes

## **Observation of practice with questions**

KSBS GROUPED BY THEME	KNOWLEDGE	SKILL	BEHAVIOUR
(Core) Working to protocol	Core: The legislation, policies, standards, local ways of working and codes of conduct that apply to own role. (K1)	Core: Work in line with legislation, policies, standards, local ways of working and codes of conduct that apply to own role. (S1)	Core: Treat people with dignity. (B1)
	Core: The scope of practice, limitations of own competence, including limitations of own role in relation to medication and who to ask for support. (K2)	Core: Work within the scope of practice, the limits of own knowledge and skills, escalating and reporting to others when needed. (S2)	
	Core: The principles of 'person-centred care and support', including principles of equality,	Core: Work as part of a multi-disciplinary team to provide safe and non-	

	diversity and inclusion, active participation, consent and choice. (K3)  Core: The principles of a 'duty of care' and 'safeguarding', the signs of abuse and ways to reduce the risk of abuse. (K4)	discriminatory person-centered care and support with individuals' established consent. (S3)  Core: Implement a duty of care, recognising and responding to safeguarding and protection concerns and acting in the best interest of individuals to ensure they do not come to harm. (S4)	
(Core) Supporting individuals	Core: The signs and symptoms that an individual's health and wellbeing is changing, including the role of prescribed medication. (K7)  Core: The signs and symptoms that an individual is in pain, distress or discomfort. (K8)  Core: The principles of hydration, nutrition and food safety. (K9)  Core: The physiological states, their normal ranges and the correct tools or equipment to use to measure them. (K28)	Core: Recognise and respond to changes in an individual's health and wellbeing. (S7)  Core: Recognise and respond to the signs and symptoms that an individual is in pain, distress or discomfort to maximise comfort and well-being. (S8)  Core: Promote and monitor access to fluids and nutrition in line with an individual's care plan. (S9)  Core: Undertake physiological measurements, selecting and using the correct tools or equipment. (S28)	None

(Core) Communication	Core: Communication techniques to maximise understanding including for individuals with specific communication needs or wishes. (K10)  Core: The meaning of 'capacity', the differences between mental illness, dementia and learning disability and the impact of these conditions on an individual's needs. (K11)  Core: Ways to record and store information securely, including the safe use of technology. (K21)  Core: The principles of confidence and disclosure. (K22)	Core: Communicate with individuals, their families, carers and others in the workplace using techniques designed to facilitate understanding. (S10)  Core: Recognise and respond to limitations in an individual's mental capacity. (S11)  Core: Record and store information related to individuals securely, including the safe use of technology. (S21)  Core: Report and share information related to individuals securely and in line with local and national policies, maintaining confidentiality, duty of confidence and disclosure. (S22)	Core: Show respect and empathy. (B2)
(Core)  Health and safety	Core: The principles of infection prevention and control and the importance of good personal hygiene, hand hygiene and correct use of personal protective equipment (PPE). (K12)  Core: Local systems and processes to manage the supply, storage, use and safe	Core: Maintain a safe and healthy working environment, using infection prevention and control techniques including hand washing, sanitisation, disinfection and personal protective equipment (PPE). (S12)	None

	disposal of stocks and supplies. (K13)  Core: The principles of safe moving and assisting individuals and moving and handling equipment. (K14)	Core: Maintain the safe supply, storage, use and disposal of supplies and equipment. (S13)  Core: Move and handle equipment or other items safely and assist individuals. (S14)	
(Adult Nursing Support) Option 1 Delegated nursing care and support for adults	Options 1 and 5: Adult nursing support and children and young people support: The activities of daily living and ways to support individuals to develop and maintain their independence in carrying out these activities. (K29)  Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: The structure and function of the skin and underlying tissues and factors that lead to tissues being compromised. (K30)  Options 1 and 5: Adult nursing support and children and young people support: The principles of wound management and the equipment and materials that are used to treat wounds. (K31)	Options 1 and 5: Adult nursing support and children and young people support: Support individuals with activities of daily living to develop and maintain their independence in line with their desired. outcomes and plan of care. (S29)  Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Assist with tissue viability risk assessments and manage pressure areas. (S30)  Options 1 and 5: Adult nursing support and children and young people support: Assist with wound care in line with the care plan. (S31)	None

	Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Methods for taking and testing specimens. (K32)	Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Obtain and test specimens in line with the care plan. (S32)	
(Maternity Support) Option 2  Delegated maternity care and support for women, babies and their families	Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: The structure and function of the skin and underlying tissues and factors that lead to tissues being compromised. (K30)  Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Methods for taking and testing specimens. (K32)  Option 2: Maternity support: Strategies to engage women and carers in feeding, bathing, parenting and self-care such as antenatal and postnatal exercise. (K37)  Option 2: Maternity support: Local and national antenatal and newborn screening services and	Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Assist with tissue viability risk assessments and manage pressure areas. (S30)  Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Obtain and test specimens in line with the care plan. (S32)  Option 2: Maternity support: Assist the midwife with teaching, feeding and hygiene needs of babies-parenting skills and antenatal and postnatal exercise. (S37)  Option 2: Maternity support: Assist health care professionals with antenatal and newborn screening and provide information to parents	None

	immunisation programmes. (K38)  Option 2: Maternity support: Local systems and protocols to maintain the maternity environment including procedures to maintain the supply of resources, instruments and equipment. (K39)  Option 2: Maternity support: The routine checks and observations undertaken for a healthy baby such as cord care, eye care, oral hygiene, stools and signs of neo-natal jaundice. (K42)	about immunisation activities. (S38)  Option 2: Maternity support: Provide support to the maternity team by maintaining the supply of resources, instruments and equipment. (S39)  Option 2: Maternity support: Care for the physical needs of babies by undertaking routine healthy baby observations and reporting any abnormalities. (S42)	
(Theatre Support) Option 3  Delegated perioperative care and support for individuals	Option 3: Theatre support: Local systems and protocols for completing pre- and post-operative checklists. (K46)  Option 3: Theatre support: The principles of asepsis and maintenance of the sterile field in relation to the provision of surgical instrumentation and medical devices to the surgical team. (K47)  Option 3: Theatre support: The effects of pre-medication, sedation and	Option 3: Theatre support: Complete pre- and post-operative checklists. (S46)  Option 3: Theatre support: Support the surgical team to maintain the sterile field. (S47)  Option 3: Theatre support: Support and monitor the pre-medicated, sedated and unconscious individual. (S49)  Option 3: Theatre support: Move, position and transport individuals and	None

	anesthesia on individuals. (K49)  Option 3: Theatre support: Techniques used in the perioperative environment to position individuals and specialist equipment for before, during and after surgery. (K51)  Option 3: Theatre support: The importance of identification, measurement, accounting for and recording swabs, sharps, instruments or other disposable items used and the actions to take if one is missing. (K53)	specialist equipment before, during and after surgery. (S51)  Option 3: Theatre support: Carry out counts for swabs, sharps, instruments and disposable items and take action if something is missing. (S53)	
(Mental Health Support) Option 4  Delegated therapeutic techniques and interventions for individuals to promote mental health recovery	Option 4: Mental health support: The nature of mental health and well-being and the main forms of mental ill health according to the psychiatric International Classification of Diseases and Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM/ICD) classification system. (K55)  Option 4: Mental health support: The main interventions in	Option 4: Mental health support: Use strategies and tools to promote mental wellbeing and to support individuals with mental ill health. (S55)  Option 4: Mental health support: Observe, record and report changes and barriers, using proactive approaches to manage behaviour which challenges. (S56)  Option 4: Mental health support: Take	None

	Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: The	outcomes and plan of care. (S29)  Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and	
(Children and Young People Support) Option 5  Delegated clinical and therapeutic activities for children, young people and their families	Options 1 and 5: Adult nursing support and children and young people support: The activities of daily living and ways to support individuals to develop and maintain their independence in carrying out these activities. (K29)	Options 1 and 5: Adult nursing support and children and young people support: Support individuals with activities of daily living to develop and maintain their independence in line with their desired.	None
	mental health and wellbeing and the benefits of early intervention. (K56)  Option 4: Mental health support: The needs of individuals with mental ill health and those supporting them at key stages and through times of change or transition. (K57)  Option 4: Mental health support: Techniques used to build, monitor and sustain therapeutic relationships with individuals, carers and their families. (K58)  Option 4: Mental health support: The factors that facilitate an individual's recovery experience. (K59)	an active approach in supporting individuals to manage their condition. (S57)  Option 4: Mental health support: Build, monitor and sustain therapeutic relationships with individuals, carers and their families. (S58)  Option 4: Mental health support: Promote a recovery-based approach that enables the individual to manage their condition. (S59)	

structure and function of the skin and underlying tissues and factors that lead to tissues being compromised. (K30)

Options 1 and 5: Adult nursing support and children and young people support: The principles of wound management and the equipment and materials that are used to treat wounds. (K31)

Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Methods for taking and testing specimens. (K32)

Option 5: Children and young people support: Principles and techniques to engage children and young people in therapeutic play. (K64)

Option 5: Children and young people support: The importance of family-centered care and the role of the public health agenda in promoting and protecting the health and wellbeing of children and young people, to include looked-after children

children and young people support: Assist with tissue viability risk assessments and manage pressure areas. (S30)

Options 1 and 5:
Adult nursing support and children and young people support: Assist with wound care in line with the care plan. (S31)

Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Obtain and test specimens in line with the care plan. (S32)

Option 5: Children and young people support: Support the development of children and young people through therapeutic play and learning. (S64)

Option 5: Children and young people support: Support parents, families and carers to meet the needs of children and young people. (S66)

	and young carers. (K66)  Option 5: Children and young people support: The expected physical, cognitive, language, emotional, social and developmental milestones, the tools and equipment to measure and assess them and how to adapt practice to meet additional needs. (K67)	Option 5: Children and young people support: Support children and young people before, during or after diagnostic, clinical or therapeutic procedures. (S67)	
(Allied Health Profession Therapy Support) Option 6  Delegated therapeutic activities to support individuals in meeting their optimum potential	Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: The care planning process and therapeutic strategies used within own role to promote and enable independence, self-management, social integration, recovery and skills for everyday life. (K68)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Local systems for undertaking clinical risk assessments and management plans relevant to own work setting. (K69)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Strategies and approaches to rehabilitate or maximise an individual's function. (K71)	Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Provide therapeutic support in line with care plans to encourage independence, self-management and skills for everyday life. (S68)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Assist with undertaking clinical risk assessments and management plans. (S69)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Enable individuals to meet optimum potential. (S71)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support:	None

	Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Local systems for sourcing, ordering and fitting therapeutic equipment and resources and the criteria for provision. (K74)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: The purpose and function of the therapeutic equipment and resources available, including its limitations and contraindications. (K75)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Protocols for checking, reporting and adapting therapeutic equipment and resources. (K77)	Identify, order or fit therapeutic equipment and resources in line with the individual's care plan. (S74)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Use equipment and resources therapeutically in a safe way in line with local policy and procedure. (S75)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Complete safety checks for therapeutic equipment and resources, following protocols to report issues or make adaptations if appropriate. (S77)	
(Diagnostic imaging support) Option 7  Delegated clinical activities to support service users and their carers before, during and after diagnostic imaging and or intervention	Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The procedures and protocols for undertaking quality checks on equipment, the procedures and protocols for working safely in the imaging environment. (K78)  Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The correct clothing, hygiene, fluid, nutrition protocols, safety	Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Assist and support the multi-disciplinary team in the safe and effective operation and maintenance of the imaging environment. (S78)  Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Prepare individuals for imaging procedures, including those that maybe pre-	None

equipment requirements relevant to the imaging procedure and the condition of the individual, including the correct use of preand post- procedural checklists. (K80)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Techniques and equipment used to position individuals in line with the safety requirements of the procedure, the physical and mental condition of the individual and how this may impact on the imaging procedure. (K81)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The risks and mitigations of side effects, adverse responses or noncompliance associate with imaging procedure, the correct use of post-procedural checklists and the protocols and procedures for onward care relevant to the imaging procedure undertaken. (K85)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The principles of asepsis and maintenance of the sterile field or clean

medicated, sedated or unconscious. (S80)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support:
Support and position individuals during imaging procedures, including those that maybe premedicated, sedated or unconscious. (S81)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Provide after care for individuals following imaging procedures. (S85)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support:
Assist practitioners in setting up and maintaining aseptic or clean area in the imaging environment. (S86)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support:
Assist with undertaking clinical risk assessments and management plans. (S90)

area in relation to imaging equipment and materials. (K86)	
Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Local systems for undertaking clinical risk assessments and management plans relevant to own work setting. (K90)	

## Professional discussion underpinned by a portfolio of evidence

KSBS GROUPED BY THEME	KNOWLEDGE	SKILL	BEHAVIOUR
(Core)  Promote health and wellbeing	Core: National and local definitions of health and well-being and priorities for promoting public health and reducing inequalities. (K5)  Core: The availability of services to support individuals with lifestyle choices and how to make a referral if required. (K6)	Core: Support individuals to make informed and positive lifestyle choices. (S5)  Core: Actively seek out and act on opportunities to support individuals to maximise their health, well-being and positive lifestyle choices. (S6)	None
(Core)  Continuing professional development and reflective practice	Core: The importance of continuing personal and professional development. (K18)  Core: The local arrangements for appraisal of performance in the workplace. (K19)	Core: Undertake own training and development activities and contribute to the training and development of others. (S18)  Core: Participate in appraisal to support	Core: Be adaptable, reliable and consistent. (B3)

	Core: The principles of reflective practice. (K20)	professional development. (S19) Core: Reflect on and develop your own practice. (S20)	
(Core) Risk management	Core: The meaning of 'risk' in the workplace, ways to raise concerns and own responsibilities in relation to incidents, errors and near misses. (K15)  Core: Techniques and principles to safely perform basic life support. (K16)  Core: The common causes of conflict and how to respond to them in the workplace. (K17)	Core: Take appropriate action in response to concerns, risks, incidents or errors and near misses arising in the workplace. (S15)  Core: Perform basic life support techniques. (S16)  Core: Recognise and respond to potential conflict, challenging behaviour or an escalating situation. (S17)	None
(Core)  Quality Improvement	Core: The principles of 'quality improvement' and ways to measure quality in the workplace. (K23)  Core: The principles of investigatory techniques, research and evidence-based practice, and how to access existing evidence and use it to validate and improve practice (K24)  Core: The principles of critical thinking and	Core: Participate in and support others with quality improvement activities in the workplace. (S23)  Core: Use investigatory techniques to source evidence to validate and improve the delivery of care and support within own scope of practice. (S24)	None

	methods of critical appraisal. (K25)	Core: Critically appraise sources of information and apply to practice. (S25)	
(Core) Teamwork, role modelling and leadership	Core: The principles and styles of leadership in relation to own role and place of work. (K26)  Core: The relationship and differences between leadership, management, supervision and mentoring. (K27)	Core: Provide leadership and act as a role model for others within the scope of own role. (S26)  Core: Contribute to mentoring and supervision of others in the workplace within the scope of own role. (S27)	None
(Adult Nursing Support) Option 1  Delegated nursing care and support for adults	Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: The end-of-life phase and the factors which impact care during the end of life phase. (K33)	Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Provide care and support for individuals and their family during the end-of-life phase. (S33)	None
	Options 1, 2, 5 and 6: Adult nursing support, maternity support, children and young people support and allied health professional therapy support: Local systems for discharge and transfer and the availability of services and agencies offered by the wider health and social care system. (K34)	Options 1, 2, 5 and 6: Adult nursing support, maternity support, children and young people support and allied health professional therapy support: Contribute to signposting to relevant agencies and, discharge or transfer of individuals between services, in line with their care plan. (S34)	

	Options 1, 2, 4 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support, mental health support and children and young people support: The signs and symptoms that indicate an individual's physical or mental health and wellbeing are deteriorating. (K35)  Option 1: Adult nursing support: How to support adults to take responsibility for their own health and wellbeing. (K36)	Options 1, 2, 4 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support, mental health support and children and young people support: Recognise and respond to deteriorations in physical health, mental health and wellbeing. (S35)  Option 1: Adult nursing support: Support adults to take responsibility for their own health and wellbeing and for managing their own condition. (S36)	
(Maternity Support) Option 2  Delegated maternity care and support for women, babies and their families	Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: The end-of-life phase and the factors which impact care during the end of life phase. (K33)  Options 1, 2, 5 and 6: Adult nursing support, maternity support,	Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Provide care and support for individuals and their family during the end-of-life phase. (S33)  Options 1, 2, 5 and 6: Adult nursing support, maternity support,	None
	children and young people support and allied health professional therapy support: Local systems for discharge and transfer and the availability of services and agencies offered by the wider health	children and young people support and allied health professional therapy support: Contribute to signposting to relevant agencies and, discharge or transfer of individuals between services, in	

and social care system. (K34)

Options 1, 2, 4 and 5:
Adult nursing support,
maternity support,
mental health support
and children and
young people support:
The signs and
symptoms that indicate
an individual's physical
or mental health and
wellbeing are
deteriorating. (K35)

Option 2: Maternity support: The purpose of a urethral catheter and the importance of regular monitoring. (K40)

Option 2: Maternity support: Local security procedures for women and babies including systems for woman and baby identification. (K41)

Option 2: Maternity support: The nutritional and hygiene needs of babies, the benefits of different feeding methods and the importance of skin to skin contact in bonding. (K43)

Option 2: Maternity support: The principles of supporting families at difficult times, bereavement and loss and the availability of line with their care plan. (S34)

Options 1, 2, 4 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support, mental health support and children and young people support: Recognise and respond to deteriorations in physical health, mental health and wellbeing. (S35)

Option 2: Maternity support: Support personal care such as providing care for women with urethral catheters. (S40)

Option 2: Maternity support: Identify the baby and provide wristband or label in line with local security procedures. (S41)

Option 2: Maternity support: Support parents and carers to meet the developmental, nutritional and hygiene needs of babies. (S43)

Option 2: Maternity support: Work in partnership with families and other support services to support individuals in difficult circumstances.

	other support services. (K44)  Option 2: Maternity support: The scope of their own role in an emergency situation during pregnancy, labour, birth or the postnatal period. (K45)	bereavement and loss. (S44)  Option 2: Maternity support: Provide support to the midwife and others in the multi-disciplinary team in an emergency situation during pregnancy, labour, birth or the postnatal period. (S45)	
(Theatre Support) Option 3  Delegated perioperative care and support for individuals	Option 3: Theatre support: Local systems and protocols for team briefing, patient sign in, timeout, sign out and debriefing. (K48)  Option 3: Theatre support: The purpose for recording an individual's body fluid and factors that affect input, output and wound drainage. (K50)  Option 3: Theatre support: The types, purpose and function of surgical instruments and supplementary items used in theatre such as the cost implications of items used and the impact on the commissioning of surgical procedures. (K52)  Option 3: Theatre support: Types and uses of containers for	Option 3: Theatre support: Participate in team briefing, patient sign in, timeout, sign out and debriefing. (S48)  Option 3: Theatre support: Measure and record an individual's body fluid balance. (S50)  Option 3: Theatre support: Prepare the clinical environment and provide surgical instrumentation and supplementary items for the surgical team. (S52)  Option 3: Theatre support: Assist in receiving, handling and dispatching clinical specimens or blood products. (S54)	None

	tranapart presedures		
	transport, procedures for labelling, handling, dispatching recording and reporting for clinical specimens and blood products. (K54)		
(Mental Health Support) Option 4  Delegated therapeutic techniques and interventions for individuals to promote mental health recovery	Options 1, 2, 4 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support, mental health support and children and young people support: The signs and symptoms that indicate an individual's physical or mental health and wellbeing are deteriorating. (K35)	Options 1, 2, 4 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support, mental health support and children and young people support: Recognise and respond to deteriorations in physical health, mental health and wellbeing. (S35)	None
	Option 4: Mental health support: The impact of the individual's mental ill-health on their life, family, friendships and active participation in society. (K60)	Option 4: Mental health support: Enable and empower individuals to actively participate in society and recognise the impact of mental health on them and others. (S60)	
	Option 4: Mental health support: Risk factors of harm to self or others, a range of triggers and consideration of the impact of the environment. (K61)	Option 4: Mental health support: Identify situations of risk to yourself or others and take action including seeking support. (S61)	
	Option 4: Mental health support: Prevention and risk reduction strategies which involve the individual and others, such as suicide mitigation, behaviours	Option 4: Mental health support: Involve the individual, carers and family members in risk	

	which challenge, substance misuse and self-neglect and reduction of restrictive practices. (K62)  Option 4: Mental health support: The importance of own mental health and wellbeing when working in mental health services. (K63)	management processes. (S62)  Option 4: Mental health support: Review and promote your own mental health and wellbeing. (S63)	
(Children and Young People Support) Option 5  Delegated clinical and therapeutic activities for children, young people and their families	Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: The end-of-life phase and the factors which impact care during the end of life phase. (K33)	Options 1, 2 and 5: Adult nursing support, maternity support and children and young people support: Provide care and support for individuals and their family during the end-of-life phase. (S33)	None
Tattilles	Options 1, 2, 5 and 6: Adult nursing support, maternity support, children and young people support and allied health professional therapy support: Local systems for discharge and transfer and the availability of services and agencies offered by the wider health and social care system. (K34)  Options 1, 2, 4 and 5: Adult nursing support,	Options 1, 2, 5 and 6: Adult nursing support, maternity support, children and young people support and allied health professional therapy support: Contribute to signposting to relevant agencies and, discharge or transfer of individuals between services, in line with their care plan. (S34)  Options 1, 2, 4 and 5: Adult nursing support,	
	maternity support, mental health support and children and	maternity support, mental health support and children and	

	young people support: The signs and symptoms that indicate an individual's physical or mental health and wellbeing are deteriorating. (K35)  Option 5: Children and young people support: The main life transitions for children and young people and the importance of involving the child or young person in their own care in line with legal policy and service frameworks for children and young people. (K65)	young people support: Recognise and respond to deteriorations in physical health, mental health and wellbeing. (S35)  Option 5: Children and young people support: Support children and young people through transitions by enabling shared or independent decision making. (S65)	
(Allied Health Profession Therapy Support) Option 6  Delegated therapeutic activities to support individuals in meeting their optimum potential	Options 1, 2, 5 and 6: Adult nursing support, maternity support, children and young people support and allied health professional therapy support: Local systems for discharge and transfer and the availability of services and agencies offered by the wider health and social care system. (K34)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: The potential impact of mental and	Options 1, 2, 5 and 6: Adult nursing support, maternity support, children and young people support and allied health professional therapy support: Contribute to signposting to relevant agencies and, discharge or transfer of individuals between services, in line with their care plan. (S34)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Recognise the impact	None
	impact of mental and physical capacity, health condition, learning disability or overall wellbeing on	Recognise the impact of mental or physical capacity, health condition, learning disability or overall	

	therapeutic or clinical interventions. (K70)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Strategies and tools available to engage individuals or communities in group sessions. (K72)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Activities and resources available within the community and the means to access them. (K73)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Strategies and tools available to engage individuals in learning how to use therapeutic equipment and resources. (K76)	wellbeing on the therapeutic or clinical task or intervention and when to adapt. (S70)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Facilitate group sessions to support health and well-being of individuals or communities. (S72)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Support people to engage in the community and access activities or resources in line with their treatment goals. (S73)  Option 6: Allied health professional therapy support: Demonstrate and teach the safe and appropriate use of therapeutic equipment and resources. (S76)	
(Diagnostic imaging support) Option 7  Delegated clinical activities to support service users and their carers before,	Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: An awareness of ionising and non-ionising radiation and how these are safely applied to imaging examinations across a patient pathway. (K79)	Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Support the multidisciplinary team in the safe flow of individuals through the imaging environment, recognising and complying with	None

during and after diagnostic imaging and/or intervention Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The regulations procedures and protocols for the safe preparation and administration of medicines and contrast agents. (K82)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Roles and responsibilities in the safe supply, management and administration of medicines, the range of procedures where these are used and the risks and mitigations of side effects, adverse response or noncompliance. (K83)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The risks and contra-indications of cannulation and the equipment and techniques used to cannulate/remove cannulas. (K84)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The structure and function of the human body in health, disease and trauma, as well as common pathologies and mechanisms of disease and trauma, in relation to imaging examinations. (K87)

current legislation and best practice. (S79)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Support practitioners with the preparation and administration of medicines and contrast agents within the scope of own role. (S82)

Option 7: Diagnostic Imaging Support: Administer medicines supplied by a registered practitioner within the scope of own role. (S83)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Insert, flush and remove cannulas in line with local protocols and within the scope of own role. (S84)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Support the multi-disciplinary team in the safe delivery of an imaging service. (S87)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Review and promote the health and wellbeing of self and others, including mental health. (S88)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The importance of recognising the signs and symptoms that indicate a deterioration in the health and wellbeing of self and others, including mental health. (K88)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Local systems and protocols for team briefing, patient sign in, timeout, sign out and debriefing. (K89)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: The potential impact of mental and physical capacity, health condition, learning disability or overall wellbeing on therapeutic or clinical interventions. (K91)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Participate in team briefing, patient sign in, timeout, sign out and debriefing. (S89)

Option 7: Diagnostic imaging support: Recognise the impact of mental or physical capacity, health condition, learning disability or overall wellbeing on the therapeutic or clinical task or intervention and when to adapt. (S91)